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Date:	September	15,	2025	
	
To, 
The Manager 
BSE	Limited	
Corporate Relationship Department 
1st Floor, New Trading Ring, 
Rotunda Building, P.J Towers,  
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai -400001 
 
BSE Scrip ID – SHALPRO  
BSE Scrip Code - 512499 	
	
Subject:	Notice	convening	40th	Annual	General	Meeting	along	with	the	Annual	Report	for	
the	financial	year	2024‐25.	
 
Dear	Sir/Madam,		
	
Ref:	Regulation	30	and	34	of	the	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(Listing	Obligation	
and	Disclosure	Requirements)	Regulations,	2015.	
	
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and Regulation 34(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed the 
following documents, which are being sent to the shareholders of the Company through electronic 
mode. 
 

1. Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 30th 
September, 2025 at 10.00 a.m. at “Vyanjan Banquet Hall” 46, First Floor, Oshiwara Link Plaza, 
Next to Oshiwara Police Station, Near Maheshwari Bhawan, Above “Vyanjan” Sweets, Link Road, 
Extn, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400102; and 

 
2. The Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 

 
Kindly take the above on record and acknowledge the receipt of the same. 
 

Thanking You. 
Yours faithfully, 
	
For	Shalimar	Productions	Limited		
	
	
	
________________________	
Tilokchand	Kothari	
Director	
DIN:	00413627 





 

 

INDEX 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Corporate information ‐ 02

Notice of Annual General Meeting ‐ 3 

Director's Report ‐ 29

Secretarial Audit Report ‐ 39

Corporate Governance Report ‐ 53

Management Discussion and Analysis Report ‐ 73

Financial Statements ‐ 80



  
 

2 | A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  
 

CORPORATE INFORMATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Tilokchand Kothari Chairman & Executive Director 

Vikramjit Singh Gill Executive Director, CFO 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal (Appointment w.e.f. 

26.09.2024) 

Independent Director 

Shubham Gupta (Appointment w.e.f. 26.09.2024) Independent Director 

Anju Pareek (Appointment w.e.f. 02.12.2024) Independent Director 

Kiran Kaur CEO 

Archana Gupta (Resigned w.e.f. 04th August, 

2025) 

Company Secretary 

REGISTERED OFFICE AND CORPORATE OFFICE

A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400053 

STATUTORY AUDITORS SECRETERIAL AUDITORS 

M/s Bhatter & Associates,  

Chartered Accountants 

302, 3RD Floor, Kapadia Chambers, 599, J.S.S. 

Road, Chira Bazar, Marine Lines, Mumbai-

400002 

M/s Kirti Sharma & Associates 

41/A, Tara Chand Dutta Street, Kolkata-700 

073 

INTERNAL AUDITOR BANKERS 

Mr. Lakhpat M. Trivedi HDFC BANK LTD. 

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT 

Adroit Corporate Services (P) Limited 

19/20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, 1st floor, Makwana Road, 

Marol Naka, Andheri (East), Mumbai- 400059 

Tel No.: 28596060/28503748   Website: www.adroitcorporate.com 

BOARD COMMITTEES & ITS COMPOSITION 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Anju Pareek Chairman 

Shubham Gupta  Member 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal Member 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Anju Pareek Chairman 

Shubham Gupta  Member 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal Member 

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal Chairman 

Anju Pareek Member 

Shubham Gupta  Member 

 

http://www.adroitcorporate.com/


 

3 | A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  
 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED  

CIN: L01111MH1985PLC228508 
Regd. Off.: A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai- 400053. 
Tel: 022-45170487, Website: www.shalimarpro.com, Email: contact@shalimarpro.com 

 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s. 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED will be held on Monday, 30th September, 2025 at 
10:00 a.m. at “Vyanjan Banquet Hall” 46, First Floor, Oshiwara Link Plaza, Next to Oshiwara 
Police Station, Near Maheshwari Bhawan, Above “Vyanjan” Sweets, Link Road, Extn, Andheri 
(West), Mumbai-4000102, to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill (DIN: 08875328), who retires by 
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill (DIN: 08875328), who retires by rotation, 
be and is hereby re-appointed as a director liable to retire by rotation. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 

3. To approve Material Related Party Transactions  

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of 

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulation 23(4) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”) and the Company’s policy on Related Party transaction(s), approval of 

Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into 
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contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with Visagar Financial Services Limited, Visagar 

Polytex Limited, Maharashtra Corporation Limited, Trisha Studios Limited and Visagar 

Textiles Private Limited, Njoymax OTT Entertainment Pvt Ltd, Sagar Portfolio Services 

Ltd, Jagrecha Finance And Trades Private Limited, related parties within the meaning of 

Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1) (zb) of the Listing Regulations, grant and avail loan 

services to carry day to day business activity on such terms and conditions as the Board of 

Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum value of Rs. 25 Crore (Rupees Twenty Five Crores 

Only) for each related party for the financial year 2025-26, provided that the said contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary 

course of business of the Company.  

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to delegate all 

or any of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors of 

the Company and to do all acts and take such steps as may be considered necessary or expedient 

to give effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

 
4. Appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates as a Secretarial Auditor for 5 years from 

Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an ordinary resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, including any amendments thereto for the time being in force, M/s. Kirti Sharma & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (CP No. 26705) be and is hereby appointed as the 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct auditing of the secretarial and related records of 
the company and to furnish Secretarial Audit Report for five years from the Financial year 2025-
26 to 2029-30 at a remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Secretarial Auditor and 
the Board of Directors of the Company.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT anyone Director or Company Secretary of the Company, be 
and is hereby authorised to provide necessary assistance for conducting the aforesaid audit.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT anyone Director or Company Secretary of the Company of 
the Company, be and is hereby severally authorised to do all acts, deeds and matters and such 
other things as may be necessary or expedient to implement this resolution.” 
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5. Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Vikasjeet Singh (DIN: 11228402) as a Director 
of the company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as an ordinary resolution:  
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 152 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the act") and Rule 8, 9 and 14 of the Companies 
(appointment and qualification of directors) rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and provisions of the article of association of 
the company, the members be and hereby accorded their consent to the appointment of Mr. 
Vikasjeet Singh (DIN: 11228402) who in terms of section 161 of the companies act, 2013 holds 
office until the date of this annual general meeting and is being eligible for appointment and has 
consented to act as a Director of the company and in respect of whom the company has received 
a notice in writing from a member under section 160(1) of the act proposing his candidature for 
the office of director of the company, as an Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the 
company, not liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one director of the Company is hereby authorized to do 
all the acts, deeds and things which are necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution”. 
 

6. To approve a Change in the Object clause of the Company 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as a Special Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of section 4 and 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 including statutory amendments and 
modifications made thereunder, and the necessary registrations, approvals, consents, permissions 
and sanctions required, if any, from the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies, and any other 
appropriate regulatory authorities approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to alter 
Memorandum of Association of the Company in the following manner: Insertion of following 
main object as serial number 6 Under Clause III (A): 
 
“6. To carry on the business as an investment company and for that purpose to acquire and 
hold either in the name of the company or in that of any nominee shares, stocks, debentures, 
debenture stock, bonds, notes, and to invest or deposit funds in such articles (including gold, 
silver, jewelry, platinum, precious stones), and to acquire, purchase, sell, or lease the same, as 
well as materials, articles, or things, obligations, and securities issued or guaranteed by any 
company or entity, whether quoted or unquoted or otherwise, wherever incorporated or 
carrying on any business. Additionally, to acquire, buy, invest in shares of similar or other 
companies or entities, whether quoted or unquoted or otherwise, and associations or entities 
globally.”  
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to file necessary E forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion deem necessary and with power to 
make the necessary corrections and alterations suggested by the Registrar of Companies and 
settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without requiring the Board to 
secure any further approval of the members of the Company. 
 
 
 
Registered Office:                             By Order of the Board of Directors 
A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak 
Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link 
Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai-400053 

                            For Shalimar Productions Limited 
 
  
                                       Sd/-

                              Tilokchand Kothari 
Place: Mumbai                              Chairman & Director 
Date:  08/09/2025                              DIN: 00413627 
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NOTES: 
 

1. The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), 
which sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto. The relevant 
details of the Directors seeking re-appointment/ appointment pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and as required under Secretarial Standards-2 on 
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are annexed. 
 

2. In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of AGM (“Notice”) along with 
the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 shall be sent through electronic mode to those 
members whose email IDs are registered with the company/depository participant(s). Members 
may note that Notice and Annual Report 2024-25 has been uploaded on the website of the 
Company at www.shalimarpro.com. Notice and Annual Report can also be accessed from the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is 
also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-voting facility) at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
3. Corporate Members are encouraged to attend the AGM through their Authorized 

Representatives. They are requested to send by email at contact@shalimarpro.com, a certified 
copy of the Board Resolution/ Authorization Letter authorizing their representatives to attend 
and vote on their behalf in the Meeting. 

4. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“meeting”) is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself /herself and the proxy need not be 
a member of the company. The instrument appointing a proxy in order to be valid must be duly 
filled in all respects and should be deposited at the registered office of the company not later 
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

Pursuant to the provision of the Companies Act 2013 (hereinafter called “the Act”) and the Rules 
made thereunder a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and 
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the 
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not 
act as a proxy for any other shareholder. 
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5. Members holding Shares in single name and physical form are advised to make a nomination in 
respect of their shareholding in the Company. Members can avail of the Nomination facility by 
filing Form SH-13 with the Company or its Registrar. Blank Forms will be supplied on request. 
In case of shares held in Demat form, the nomination has to be lodged with their Depository 
Participants. 

6. Members who hold shares in physical shares in multiple folios in identical names or joint 
holding in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to Adroit 
Corporate Services (P) Ltd. for consolidation into a single folio. 

7. Members are informed that in case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder 
who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote. 

8. Particulars of Bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository 
Participants. 

9. Members, holding shares in physical form, are requested to notify changes in address, if any, 
to the Registrars of the Company immediately, quoting their folio numbers. Members, holding 
shares in dematerialized form, should send the above information to the respective Depository 
Participants. 

10. Members are requested to quote their Registered Folio Nos. on all correspondence with the 
Company. 

11. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 
September 24, 2025 to September 30, 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of annual 
book closure. 

12. The facility for voting through a polling paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their right at the meeting through a polling paper. However, members who have cast 
their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM, but shall not be 
entitled to vote again at the AGM. 

13. Members are requested to bring the attendance slip duly filled in, for attending the Meeting. The 
Attendance slip is sent with this Annual Report. Members, who hold shares in Electronic Form, 
are requested to bring their Depository ID Number and Client ID Number to facilitate their 
identification for recording attendance at the forthcoming Annual           General Meeting. 

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of 
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the securities market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository 
Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts(s). Members holding shares 
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in physical form can submit their PAN details to M/s. Adroit Corporate Services (P) Ltd., 19/20, 
Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate,1st floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 
400 059. 

15. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be 
open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all working 
days except Saturdays between 11.00 a.m. to 02.00 p.m. up to the date of declaration of the 
result of the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

16. The Annual Report 2024-25 and Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form, are being sent in electronic form to all the 
members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s). For 
members who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the aforesaid documents 
are being sent in the permitted mode. Members who prefer a physical copy to be delivered may 
write to the Company at its registered office or send an E-mail to contact@shalimarpro.com by 
providing their DP Id and Client Id as reference. 

17. Members may also note that the Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting and the Annual 
Report for 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website www.shalimarpro.com for 
download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the 
Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours on working days. 

18. Members who wish to get any further information as regards the items to be transacted at the 
meeting are requested to write to Mr. Tilokchand Manaklal Kothari, Chairman & Managing 
Director, at least ten days prior to the Meeting so as to enable the management to reply at the 
meeting. 

19. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings in 
dematerialized form to eliminate risks associated with physical shares and better management of 
the securities. Members can write to the company’s registrar and share transfer agent in this 
regard. 
 

20. SEBI vide its circular dated January 25, 2022, has mandated that listed companies shall 
henceforth issue the securities in dematerialised form only, while processing service requests 
such as issue of duplicate share certificates, transmission, transposition, etc. Accordingly, 
members who still hold share certificates in physical form are advised to dematerialise their 
holdings. Members holding shares in physical form are advised to avail the facility of 
dematerialisation by contacting a DP of their choice 

21. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 39th Annual General Meeting is 
annexed herewith the Notice. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS     UNDER:  
 
The remote e-voting period begins on September 27, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 
September 29, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL 
for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 23, 2025 may cast 
their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 
September 23, 2025. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

      Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not 
registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
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available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period.  
Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 
click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
use your existing my easi username & password. 
After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
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company. On clicking the e-Voting option, the user will be 
able to see the e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the 
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 
directly. 

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
click on the registration option. 

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from 
a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
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Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or 
call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911

 
 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

ternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 
Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your 
user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** 
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and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 
Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 
 
If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change 
your password. 
How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the 
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 
8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. 
The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  
If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.
 
 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 
your password: 
 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 
at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address etc. 
Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
 
After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box. 
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 
How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 
which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 
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2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote. 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required 
to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ 
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
kirti.sharma2593@yahoo.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also 
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by 
clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-
Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000  
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to contact@shalimarpro.com . 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
contact@shalimarpro.com.  

3. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer 
to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

4. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user 
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

I. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-
voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM). 
 

II. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial 
owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper. 
 

III. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio 
which may be used for sending future communication(s). 
 
 

IV. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23rd September, 2025. 
 

V. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after 

dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2025, may 
obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inor 
info@adroitcorporate.com 
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VI. Ms. Kirti Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary, Partner of the Firm named Kirti Sharma & 
Associates, Company Secretaries, MN: A41645 and COP No.: 26705 has been appointed as 
the Scrutinizer for providing a facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting 
and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

VII. The Chairman Shall, at the AGM, at the end of the discussion on the resolutions on which voting 
is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of a scrutinizer, by use of “Polling Paper” for all 
those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote 
e-voting facility. 
 

VIII. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at 
the meeting by polling papers and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in 
the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, 
not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the 
total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 
writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
 

IX. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company viz. www.shalimarpro.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the 
declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall 
also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai. 
 
Registered Office:                                   By Order of the Board of Directors 
A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak 
Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link 
Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai-400053 

                                  For Shalimar Productions Limited 
 
  
                                            Sd/-

                                  Tilokchand Kothari 
Place: Mumbai                                  Chairman & Director 
Date:  08/09/2025                                  DIN: 00413627 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013) 
 

Item No. 3:  
                      
To approve Material Related Party Transactions 
 
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the 
applicable rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment 
thereof, for the time being in force), Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with amendment 
thereof (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and the Company’s Policy on Materiality of Related Party 
Transactions and also on dealing with Related Party Transactions of the Company (“the Policy”), 
the material related party transactions to be entered by the Company on arm’s length basis with 
as set out in Item No. 3 require approval of the members of the Company through the ordinary 
resolutions. 
 
Further, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company both on 08th 
September, 2025 respectively approved entering into material related party transactions, subject 
to the approval of the members of the Company 
 
Provisions related to clause (d) of sub-section (1) of section 188 Companies Act 2013 for 
availing or rendering of any services, directly or through appointment of agent,  amounting to ten 
percent or more of the turnover of the company as mentioned is subject to approval of 
shareholders. 
 

Under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), all Related Party Transactions shall require 
prior approval of the Audit Committee and all material Related Party Transactions shall require 
approval of the Shareholders. The said Regulation further provides a definition of the term 
‘Material’ as follows: 

 
“a transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction / transactions to 
be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, 
exceeds rupees one thousand crore or ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover of  the  
listed  entities per the last Audited Financial Statements of the Company, whichever is earlier.” 
 
As per Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and read with applicable provisions of the 
Act, related parties of the Company are not permitted to vote to approve the resolutions set out in 
Item No. 3 to of this Notice whether the related party is a related party to the proposed 
transaction or not. 
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Mr. Tilokchand Kothari, is common director in Visagar Financial Services Limited, Visagar 
Polytex Limited, Maharashtra Corporation Limited, Trisha Studios Limited and Visagar Textiles 
Private Limited, Njoymax OTT Entertainment Pvt Ltd, Sagar Portfolio Services Ltd, Jagrecha 
Finance And Trades Private Limited.  
 
Mr. Tilokchand Kothari has more than 2% shareholding in Visagar Financial Services Limited, 
Visagar Polytex Limited, Maharashtra Corporation Limited, Trisha Studios Limited and Visagar 
Textiles Private Limited, Njoymax OTT Entertainment Pvt Ltd, Sagar Portfolio Services Ltd, 
Jagrecha Finance And Trades Private Limited.  
 
None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/ or any of their 
respective relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions set out 
at Item No. 8, to this Notice except as provided above. 
 
Item No. 4 
 
Appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates as a Secretarial Auditor for Five Years 
from the Fy 2025-26 To 2029-30: 
 
The Board of Directors of has proposed the appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of five 
years, commencing from Financial Year 2025-26 to Financial Year 2029-30. 
 
M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates have given their consent to act as Secretarial Auditors and have 
confirmed that they meet the eligibility criteria specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made thereunder. 
 
The Board believes that M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates possess the necessary expertise and 
experience to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company, and their appointment will ensure 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution for the appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates as 
Secretarial Auditors for approval by the shareholders. 
 
Item No. 5 
 
Regularization of Additional Director, Mr. Vikasjeet Singh (DIN: 11228402) as Director of 
the company: 
 
Mr. Vikasjeet Singh (DIN: 11228402) was first inducted to the Board at the Board Meeting held 
on 13th August, 2025 and in the same meeting he was appointed as the Additional Director. In 
terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikasjeet Singh can hold office only 
up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. With respect to the same, the Company 
has received a notice in writing pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 
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2013 proposing his  candidature for appointment as a Director of the Company. Further, in the 
same meeting i.e., meeting held on 13th August, 2025, the Board appointed Mr. Vikasjeet Singh 
as the Director of the Company, with immediate effect subject to the approval of the 
shareholders. The terms and conditions of the appointment are set out in a draft Appointment 
letter to be issued to Mr. Vikasjeet Singh by the Company. The Board is of the opinion that the 
appointment and presence of Mr. Vikasjeet Singh as the Director will be desirable, beneficial 
and in the best interest of the Company. The Board recommends the resolution set out in item no. 
5 of the accompanying Notice for approval and adoption of the Members. A copy of the Board 
Resolution and the draft appointment letter issued to Mr. Vikasjeet Singh, Director will be 
available for inspection between 11.00 a.m. to 01.00 p.m. on all working days (Monday to 
Friday) at the Registered Office of the Company. None of the Directors of the Company except 
Mr. Vikasjeet Singh is concerned or interested in the proposed resolution. 
 
Relevant documents in respect of the said item are open for inspection by the members at the 
Registered Office of the Company on all working days during 2.30 p.m. to 4.30 p.m. up to the 
date of the Meeting.  
 
None of the Other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in 
any way, concerned or interested in the resolution set out at item No. 5 of the Notice. 
 
 Item No.6 
                      
Change in the object clause of the Company 
 
As a part of the diversification plan, the management has proposed to alter Clause III (A) of the 
MOA of the company by inserting a varied horizon of Multiple Business Opportunities foreseen 
by the Board, with respect to Investment activity in the Company.  
 
The proposed Memorandum of Association with marked up changes that are aligned with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, is available for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company on all working days, except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays between 11.00 a.m. and 
2.00 p.m.  
 
In view of the above, your directors recommend the proposed resolution be carried as a Special 
Resolution. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (including relatives of directors 
or key managerial personnel) of the Company is in any way concerned or interested, financially 
or otherwise in this proposed resolution except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company, if any. The proposed Resolution does not relate to or affect any other Company. 
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Registered Office: 
A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, 
Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai – 400053, Tel: 022-45170487 

                                  

By Order of the Board of   Directors 
For Shalimar Productions Limited 
 

   
 
                                                                          Sd/- 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 08/09/2025 

Tilokchand Kothari                                     
Chairman and Director                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
DIN: 00413627 
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Annexure to Notice 

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting 
(Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 & Secretarial Standards-2 on 

General Meetings) 

Item No. 3 and 5 

 
Name Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill Mr. Vikasjeet Singh 
Date of Birth 11.01.1991 17.10.1996 
Appointed on 02.01.2021 13.08.2025 
Qualifications Graduate Graduate
Brief Profile Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill has done 

Graduation. He is well acquainted 
and read with financial statement and 
has additional knowledge of Audit 
matters 

Mr. Vikasjeet Singh has graduation 
in 2018 from Punjab University. Mr. 
Vikasjeet Singh has over 2 years of 
experience in the field of Vfx 
Compositing 

Directorship held in 
Public Companies 

Shalimar Productions Limited NA 

Memberships/Chairman
ships of Audit and 
Stakeholder’s 
elationship Committees 
across Public 
Companies 

Nil Nil 

No. of Shares held in the 
Company 

Nil Nil 

 

 
Registered Office:                             By Order of the Board of Directors 
907/908, Dev Plaza, Opp. 
Andheri Fire Station, S.V. 
Road, Andheri (West), 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 
400058 

                      For Visagar Polytex Limited 
 
  
                       Sd/- 

                       Tilokchand Kothari 
Place: Mumbai                       Chairman & Managing Director 
Date:  08/09/2025                       DIN: 00413627 
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ROUTE FOR THE VENUE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

 
 

VENUE: “VYANJAN BANQUET HALL” - 46, First Floor, Oshiwara Link Plaza, Next to 
Oshiwara Police Station, Near Maheshwari Bhawan, Above “ Vyanjan” Sweets, Link Road, 
Extn, Andheri (West), Mumbai-4000102. 
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INTENTIONALLY LEFT BANK 
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SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 

CIN:  L01111MH1985PLC228508 
Regd. Office: A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (West) 

Mumbai - 400053. 
Tel.: 022-45170487, Website: www.shalimarpro.com E-mail Id:contact@shalimarpro.com 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall Joint shareholders 
may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting 
 

D.P. Id*  Folio No.  

Client Id*  No. of  Shares  

 

 NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER / PROXYHOLDER: 
 
 

I hereby record my presence at the 40
th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 

Monday, 30th September, 2025 at 10.00 a.m. at “Vyanjan Banquet Hall” 46, First Floor, 
Oshiwara Link Plaza, Next to Oshiwara Police Station, Near Maheshwari Bhawan, Above 
“ Vyanjan” Sweets, Link Road, Extn, Andheri (West), Mumbai-4000102. 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                              Signature of Shareholder/Proxy holder 
 
Note: 
 

Members are requested to bring their Attendance Slip, sign the same at the place 
provided and hand it over at the entrance of the venue. 

.................................................................................. (Tear 
Here)………………………………………………………………. 



          

     

26 | A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  
 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED  

L01111MH1985PLC228508 
Regd. Office: A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road,  

                                 Andheri (West), Mumbai - 400053 . 
Tel.: 022-45170487, Website: www.shalimarpro.com E-mail Id: contact@shalimarpro.com 

 
PROXY FORM 

 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
Name of the Member(s) : 
 
 

Registered Address : 
 
 

Email ID : 
 

 

Folio No./Client ID/DP ID : 
 
 
 
 

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the above 
named Company, hereby appoint: 
 
 
Name :                            Address : 
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Email ID: Signature: 

  or failing him 
 
Name : Address : 
 

 

 
 

Email ID: Signature: 

  or failing him 
 
Name : Address : 
 

 

 
 

Email ID: Signature: 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 
40th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, 30th September 2025 
at 10.00 a.m. at “Vyanjan Banquet Hall” 46, First Floor, Oshiwara Link Plaza, Next to 
Oshiwara Police Station, Near Maheshwari Bhawan, Above “Vyanjan” Sweets, Link Road, 
Extn, Andheri (West), Mumbai-4000102 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below: 
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Ordinary Business Special Business 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the 
Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2025 and the Reports of the 
Board of Directors and the Auditors 
thereon  
 

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. 
Vikramjit Singh Gill (DIN: 08875328), 
who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment 

 

3. To approve Material Related Party 
Transactions  

4. Appointment of M/s. Kirti Sharma & 
Associates as a Secretarial Auditor for 5 
years from Financial Year 2025-26 to 
2029-30 

5. Regularization of Additional Director, 
Mr. Vikasjeet Singh (DIN: 11228402) as 
a Director of the company 

6. To approve a Change in the Object 
clause of the Company 

 

Signed this day of 2025. 
 
  

 
Signature of Shareholder                                                                               Signature of the proxy 
(holders) 
 
Notes: 

1. This form, in order to be effective, should be duly completed, stamped, signed and deposited at 
the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commence of the meeting. 

2. Notwithstanding the above the Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at 
the meeting by the shareholders present. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members,  

Shalimar Productions Limited 

Address: - A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, 

Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, 

Andheri (West), Mumbai-400053 

 

Your directors have the pleasure of presenting the 40th Annual Report of the Company together with 

the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The Company's performance during the year ended 31st March, 2025, as compared to the 

previous financial year, is summarized below: 

                                                                                                                                    (Rs in Lakhs)   

  For the financial 

year ended  

31st March, 2025 

For the financial 

year ended  

31st March, 2024 

Income 267.85 208.71 

Less: Expenses 338.96 198.78 

Profit/ (Loss) before tax  (71.10) 9.94 

Less: Provision for tax Current - - 

Deferred Tax (0.39) - 

Income Tax of earlier years w/off - - 

Exception Income - - 

Exception expenditure - - 

Less: - Current Tax - 2.56 

Profit after Tax  (70.72) 7.38 

 

APPROPRIATIONS 

 

Interim Dividend - - 

Final Dividend - - 

Tax on distribution of dividend - - 

Transfer of General Reserve - - 

Balance carried to Balance sheet (70.72) 7.38 



   

30 | A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  

 

 

PERFORMANCE 

 

FY 2024-25, closed with Revenues of ₹266.55 Lakhs, EBITDA of ₹ (42.19) Lakhs, PAT of ₹ 

(70.72) Lakhs. 

 

OPERATIONS: 

 

There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year under review. 

 

RESERVES  

 

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount into the reserves. 

 

DIVIDEND  

 

With a view to conserving resources, your directors have thought it prudent not to recommend 

any dividend for the financial year under review.  

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The paid-up equity share capital as on March 31, 2025, was ₹984.33 Lakhs. During the year, 

there were no public issues, rights issues, bonus issues, preferential issues, or any other form of 

share issuance. Additionally, the company did not issue shares with differential voting rights or 

sweat equity shares. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  

 

There were no adverse material changes or commitments that occurred between the end of the 

financial year and the date of this report, which may affect the financial position of the Company 

or may require disclosure. 

 

BOARD MEETINGS 

 

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During FY 2024-

25, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held on May 30, 2024; August 08, 2024; August 

29, 2024; November 13, 2024; December 02, 2024, and February 11, 2025. The maximum time 

gap between any two consecutive meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. 
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COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises Mrs. Anju Pareek – Chairperson, Mr. Shubham 

Gupta – Member and Mrs. Shiwaginee Jaiswal. All recommendations given by the Audit 

Committee during FY 2024-25 were accepted by the Board.  

 

Further details on the Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of this Annual Report. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

Appointment and Resignation 

 

During the year, the Board of Directors approved the Appointment of Mrs. Shiwaginee Jaiswal, 

Mr. Shubham Gupta and Mrs. Anju Pareek as Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

 

Retirement by Rotation 

 

In accordance with the Articles of Association and as per provisions of Section 152(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill, Director (DIN: 08875328), retires by rotation at 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment. Your Board recommends his re-appointment. 

 

Except as stated above, there was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors and 

Key Managerial Personnel. 

 

In terms of provisions of Section 203 of the Act, and the Rules made thereunder, the following 

are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company: 

 

1. Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill – Chief Financial Officer 

2. Ms. Kiran Kaur – Chief Executive Director 

3. Ms. Archana Gupta (Resigned w.e.f. 04th August, 2025) – Company Secretary 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND 

INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to assessing its own performance as a 

Board in order to identify its strengths and areas in which it may improve its functioning. To that 
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end, the NRC has established processes for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, the 

Board and Committees of the Board. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Listing 

Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, performance 

of its committees as well as the Directors individually.  

 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the NRC, framed a policy for the selection and 

appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration (‘NRC Policy’). The NRC 

Policy of the Company includes criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and other employees. The NRC Policy is framed with the object of attracting, retaining 

and motivating talent which is required to run the Company successfully. The Policy can also be 

accessed on the Company’s website. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 

Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standard-1 on Meetings of Board of Directors and 

Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India, have been duly complied with. 

 

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 

All the transactions with Related Parties are placed before the Audit Committee for its approval. 

A statement containing details of all Related Party Transactions is placed before the Audit 

Committee and the Board of Directors for review on a quarterly basis and for prior approval 

whenever there is a requirement for such approvals. The omnibus approval of the Audit 

Committee is obtained on a yearly basis for the transactions that are of a foreseeable and 

repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to omnibus approval are placed before 

the Audit Committee and Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. The policy on Related Party 

Transactions (RPT) is available on the website of the Company. 

 

All the related party transactions for the year under review were in the ordinary course of 

business and on an arm’s length basis and hence disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required. No 

material related party transactions were entered with related parties during the year under review 

and there were no materially significant transactions with any of the related parties that may have 

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.  

 

The details of transactions with related parties as per the requirements of IND-AS are disclosed 

in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES 

 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions 

of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of 

details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which 

are not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. 

 

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT 

VENTURE COMPANIES 

 

During the year under review, your Company did not have any subsidiary, associate and joint 

venture companies. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The provisions as laid down in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the 

Company; hence Company has not constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.  

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

M/s. Bhatter & Associates, Chartered Accountant (Firm Registration No. 131411W) has been 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on November 

04, 2022, for the first term of five consecutive years from the conclusion of that Extra-Ordinary 

General Meeting till the conclusion of 42nd Annual General Meeting in the financial year 2027-

28. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Statutory Auditors in 

their report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 

 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Act, M/s Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company 

Secretary, was appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed to this Report. The 

Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 

The Company has in place an adequate budgetary control system and internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements. No reportable material weaknesses were observed in the 

system during the previous fiscal. Further, the Company has laid down internal financial control 

policies and procedures which ensure accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and 

the same are adequate for safeguarding of its assets and for prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, commensurate with the size and nature of operations of the Company. The policies 

and procedures are also adequate for the orderly and efficient conduct of the business of the 

Company. 

 

DETAILS REGARDING FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 

143(12) 

 

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditor has 

reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any 

instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of 

which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s report. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment, and prioritization of risks followed 

by coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of 

unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. The Company has laid a 

comprehensive Risk Assessment and Minimization Procedure, which is reviewed by the Audit 

committee and approved by the Board from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to 

ensure that executive management controls risk through means of a properly defined framework. 

The policy has been hosted on Company’s website www.visagarpolytex.in . 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.visagarpolytex.in/
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WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 

 

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and formulated the Whistle Blower Policy 

(WB) to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the WB Policy 

are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website of the 

Company. 

 

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER 

SUB-SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149 

 

The Company has received necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming 

that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under section 149(7) of the Act and 

Regulation 16 and 25 of the Listing Regulations. Independent Directors of the Company, has 

registered themselves in the databank with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs and 

confirmed compliance with the relevant provisions of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointments 

and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014. The Board is of the opinion that the Independent 

Directors of the Company possess the requisite qualifications, experience and expertise and they 

hold the highest standards of integrity. 

 

The terms and conditions of the appointment of Independent Directors have been disclosed on 

the website of the Company.  

 

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

 

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 

made there under, the Company has put in place a Familiarization Program for the Independent 

Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities and 

obligations in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business 

model etc. The same is available on the website of the Company.  

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the 

Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 are provided as Annexure I to this Report. 

 

A statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act 

read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, is provided as a separate annexure forming part of this Report. However, 

the Annual Report is being sent to the members, excluding the aforesaid annexure. The said 

https://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/acts-rules/ebooks/acts.html?act=NTk2MQ==
https://www.mca.gov.in/content/mca/global/en/acts-rules/ebooks/acts.html?act=NTk2MQ==
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information is available for electronic inspection during working hours and any member 

interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary or Registrar and 

Transfer Agent and the same will be furnished on request. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 

2013, the Annual Return for the year ended on March 31, 2025, is available on the website of the 

Company and weblink of the same is: https://www.shalimarpro.com/admin/uploads/MGT-7-

pdf.pdf 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

A Report on Corporate Governance, as annexed in Annexure II, in terms of Regulation 34 of the 

Listing Regulations, along with a Certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary, certifying 

compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance enumerated in the Listing Regulations, 

is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, giving a detailed 

analysis of the Company’s operations, as stipulated under Regulation 34 of the Listing 

Regulations, is annexed as Annexure III forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

There was no technology absorption and no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the year 

under review. Hence, the information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is to be regarded as Nil. The 

Company has not entered into any technology transfer agreement. 

 

GENERAL 

 

Other disclosures as per provisions of Section 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 are furnished as under: 

 

 

 

https://www.shalimarpro.com/admin/uploads/MGT-7-pdf.pdf
https://www.shalimarpro.com/admin/uploads/MGT-7-pdf.pdf
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a. DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNAL 

 

No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal that can have an impact on the 

going concern status and the Company’s operations in the future. 

 

b. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Board of Directors hereby 

confirms that: 

 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b. such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the Directors 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit/loss of 

the Company for that year; 

c. proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d. the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; 

e. the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis;  

f. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; 

 

c. DISCLOSURE REGARDING PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

 

The Company is committed to maintaining a productive environment for all its employees at 

various levels in the organisation, free of sexual harassment and discrimination on the basis 

of gender.  

 

The Company has framed a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment in line with the 

requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 

Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH Act”).  

 

The Company is not required to constitute an Internal Complaints Committee under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. 
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d. DISCLOSURE OF PROCEEDINGS PENDING OR APPLICATION MADE UNDER 

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016  

 

No application was filed for corporate insolvency resolution process, by a financial or 

operational creditor or by the company itself under the IBC before the NCLT. 

 

e. DISCLOSURE OF REASON FOR DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION DONE 

AT THE TIME OF TAKING A LOAN FROM THE BANK AND AT THE TIME OF 

ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT 

 

       There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 
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the progress of our Company. 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 

 

 

_________________  ___________________ 

Tilokchand Kothari  Vikramjit Singh Gill 

Director                                  Director 

DIN: 00413627                       DIN: 08875328 

                                                     

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08/09/2025 
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Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members 
SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 
CIN: L01111MH1985PLC228508 
A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, 
Off Link Road, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai-400053 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/S. SHALIMAR 

PRODUCTIONS LIMITED (hereinafter referred as ‘the Company’). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 

the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company 

has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2025 

(‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 

the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025, 

according to the provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 

thereunder; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
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Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'): 

 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations,2015; 

 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 – No events / actions 
occurred during the Audit Period in pursuance of this regulation; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 – No events / actions occurred during the 
Audit Period in pursuance of this regulation; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008 – No events / actions occurred during the 

Audit Period in pursuance of this regulation; 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 

Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 

and dealing with client; 

 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009 – No events / actions occurred during the Audit Period 
in pursuance of this regulation; 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998 – No events / actions occurred during the Audit Period 
in pursuance of this regulation; and 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015; and 

 
(vi) Other applicable laws are as under: 

 
• The Information Technology Act, 2000. 

• The FEMA Act, 1999. 

 
I report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and 
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on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test- 

check basis, the Company has complied with all the laws applicable specifically to the 

Company. 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial 

Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems 
and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable 
Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 

 
During the period under review and as per the explanations and representations 

made by the management and subject to clarifications given to us, the Company has 

generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

etc., except the following: 

 
1. The Company was imposed late Fine under Regulation 44(3) of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 for delayed submission of one day of voting results beyond the 
stipulated time frame of 48 hours of its conclusion of General Meeting held on 30th 
September, 2024 by The BSE Limited of Rs. 10000/- plus GST. 

However, the Company has paid the same on 27th October, 2024. 

2. Intimation of resignation of Mr. Kailash Ram Gopal Chhaparwal, non Executive Director 
dated 30th April, 2024 was intimated to The BSE Limited on 7th May, 2024. 

3. Registration of Mr. Shubham Gupta and Mrs. Shiwaginee Jaiswal, Independent 
Directors is expired under the Database of Independent Directors and renewal is due as 
on date. 

I further report that: 

 
• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors including Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the 

Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried 

out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 
• Adequate notice is given to all directors for the Board Meetings, including 

Committees thereof, along with agenda and detailed notes on agenda at least 

seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 

meaningful participation at the meeting by the directors. 
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• All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out 

unanimously and recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of 

Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 
 

 
I further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws such 

as direct and indirect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of 

accounts have not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to 

review by the statutory financial auditors, tax auditors and other designated 

professionals. 

 

 
I further report that as per the explanations given to me and the representation made 

by the Management and relied upon by me, there are adequate systems and processes 

in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 

monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 
I further report that during the audit period, there was no other event/action having 

major bearing on the Company’s affairs. 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 

Peer Review Certificate no. 6789/2025 
UDIN: A041645G000515525 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 30.05.2025 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ 
To, 

The Members 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 

CIN: L01111MH1985PLC228508 

A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, 

Off Link Road, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai-400053 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 

the affairs of the company. 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

 

Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 6789/2025 
UDIN: A041645G000515525 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 30.05.2025 
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SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 Dated February 8, 2019) 

To, 

The Members 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 

CIN: L01111MH1985PLC228508 

A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, 

Off Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai City, Mumbai-400053 

 

We, KIRTI SHARMA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined: 

 

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by the 

SHALIMAR PRODUCTIONS LIMITED (“the listed entity”), 

 

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 

 

(c) website of the listed entity, 

 

(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 

certification, 

for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions 

of : 

 

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, 

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and 

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and 

the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (“SEBI”); 

 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been 

examined, include: 

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018;-Not applicable during the Review Period; 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not 

applicable during the Review Period; 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 - 

Not applicable during the Review Period; 

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021- Not applicable during the Review Period; 
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(g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client. 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

(j) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - Not 

applicable during the Review Period; 

(k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;- Not 

applicable during the Review Period; and 

(l) Other applicable regulations and circulars/guidelines issued thereunder; 

and based on the above examination, We hereby report that, during the Review Period: 

(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:- 

Sr. 

No. 

Compliance 

Requirement 

(Regulations/ 

circulars/ 

guidelines 

including 

specific clause) 

Regulation/ 

CircularNo. 

Deviations Action 

Taken 

by 

Type of 

Action 

Details of 

Violation 

Fine 

Amount 

Observation 

s/Re- marks 

of the Prac- 

ticing 

Company 

Secretary 

Manage- 

ment Re- 

sponse 

Re- 

marks 

1. 44(3) Fines as per 

SEBI circular 

no. 

SEBI/HO/CFD 

/PoD2/CIR/P/2 
023/120 dated 

July 11, 2023 

(Chapter- 
VII(A)-Penal 

Action for 

Non- 
Compliance). 

As per 

Regulation 

44(3) of 

SEBI(LODR) 

Regulation, 
2015, the listed 

entity is 

required to 
disclose voting 

results of 

general 
meeting within 

48 hours of 

conclusion of 
its general 

meeting. 

However, 
Company 

submitted the 

voting results 

beyond the 

stipulated time 

frame of 48 
hours of its 

conclusion of 
General 

Meeting held 

on 30th 
September, 

2024. 

BSE Impositio 

n of Fines 

As per 

Regulation 

44(3) of 

SEBI(LODR) 

Regulation, 
2015, the 

listed entity is 

required to 
disclose voting 

results of 

general 
meeting within 

48 hours of 

conclusion of 
its general 

meeting. 

However, 
Company 

submitted the 

voting results 

beyond the 

stipulated time 

frame of 48 
hours of its 

conclusion of 
General 

Meeting held 

on 30th 
September, 

2024. 

10,000/- plus 

GST 

The 

Company 

has paid 

penalty 
amounting 

Rs. 

11,800/- 

towards 
delay filing 

of 

Regulation 
44(3) of 

SEBI(LOD 

R) 

Regulation, 
2015, on 

27th 

October, 
2024. 

The 

Company 

sincerely 

acknowled 
ges the 

delay in 

submissio 
n of 

voting 

results for 
the 

aforesaid 
Annual 

General 

Meeting 
held on 

30th 

September 
, 2024. 

The 

Company 
remains 

committed 

to 
reinforcin 

g internal 
processes 

to ensure 

strict 
adherence 

to 

prescribed 
timelines 

going 

forward. 

The 

Compan 

y has 

paid 
penalty 

amountin 

g Rs. 

11,800/- 

towards 
delay 

filing of 

Regulati 
on 44(3) 

of 

SEBI(L 
ODR) 

Regulati 

on, 2015, 
on 27th 

October, 

2024 
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(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in 

previous reports: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Observations/ 

Remarks of the 

Practicing Company 

Secretary in the 

previous reports 

Observations 

made in the 

secretarial 

compliance report 

for the year ended 

….. 

(the years are to be 

mentioned) 

Compliance 

Requirement 

(Regulations/circul 

ars/guidelines 

including specific 

clause) 

Details of violation / 

deviations and actions 

taken / penalty imposed, 

if any, on the listed entity 

Remedial actions, 

if any, taken by 

the listed entity 

Comments of the PCS 

on the actions taken by 

the listed entity 

1. The Management has For the Financial Regulation 23 (9)- The listed entity delay in The Management The Management 

 paid penalty year 2023-2024 related party submission of related party has paid penalty has paid penalty 

 amounting Rs. 5000  transaction transaction disclosure for amounting Rs. 5000 amounting Rs. 5000 

 plus GST.  disclosure for the the period ending plus GST on 15th plus GST on 15th 

   period ending September, 30, 2023. December, 2023 December, 2023. 

   September, 30,    

   2023.    

(c) I/we hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity with 

the following requirements: 

 

S. 

No. 

Particulars Compliance 

Status 

(Yes/No/NA) 

Observations/ Remarks 

by PCS 

1. Secretarial Standards: 

 

The compliances of the listed entity are in 

accordance with the applicable Secretarial 

Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries India (ICSI). 

Yes Not Applicable 

2. Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 

• All applicable policies under SEBI 

Regulations are adopted with the approval of 

board of directors of the listed entities 

• All the policies are in conformity with SEBI 

Regulations and has been reviewed & timely 

updated as per the 

regulations/circulars/guidelines issued by 

SEBI. 

Yes Not Applicable 
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3. Maintenance and disclosures on 

Website: 
The Listed entity is maintaining a 
functional website 

• Timely dissemination of the documents/ 

information under a separate section on the 

website 

• Web-links provided in annual corporate 

governance reports under Regulation 27(2) 

are accurate and specific which re-directs to 

the relevant document(s)/ section of the 

• website 

Yes Not Applicable 

4. Disqualification of Director: 

None of the Director of the Company are 

disqualified under Section 164

 of Companies Act, 2013 

Yes Not Applicable 

5. Details related to Subsidiaries of listed entities: 

(a) Identification of material subsidiary 

companies 

(b) Requirements with respect to 

disclosure of material as well as other 

subsidiaries 

Not Applicable The Listed entity does not 

have any subsidiary 
company. 

6. Preservation of Documents: 

 

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining 

records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations 

and disposal of records as per Policy of 

Preservation of 

Documents and Archival policy prescribed 

under the LODR Regulations. 

Yes Not Applicable 

7. Performance Evaluation: 

The listed entity has conducted performance 

evaluation of the Board, Independent   

Directors   and   the 

Committees at the start of every financial year 

as prescribed in SEBI Regulations. 

Yes Not Applicable 

8. Related Party Transactions: 

(a) The listed entity has obtained prior approval 

of Audit Committee for all Related party 

transactions 

(b) In case no prior approval obtained, the 

listed entity shall provide detailed reasons along 

with confirmation whether the transactions were 

subsequently approved/ratified/rejected by the 

Audit 

committee. 

Yes Not Applicable 
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9. Disclosure of events or information: 
The listed entity has provided all the required 

disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with 

Schedule III of the LODR Regulations within the 
time limits prescribed thereunder. 

Yes Not Applicable 

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: 

The listed entity is in compliance with 

Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition   of   

Insider   Trading) 

Regulations, 2015. 

Yes Not Applicable 

11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if 

any: 

No actions taken against the listed entity/ its 

promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either by 

SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under 

the Standard Operating Procedures issued by 

SEBI through various circulars) under SEBI 

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued 

thereunder (or) 

 

The actions taken against the listed entity/ its 

promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either by 

SEBI or by Stock Exchanges  are  specified  

in  the  last 

column. 

Yes As per the verification and 

confirmation provided to us 
by the Company, there is no 

other additional non-
compliance observed for any 

SEBI 

regulation/circular/guidance 
note, etc. 

12. Resignation of statutory auditors from the listed 

entity or its material subsidiaries 

In case of resignation of statutory auditor from 

the listed entity or any of its material 

subsidiaries during the financial year, the listed 

entity and / or its material subsidiary(ies) has / 

have complied with paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 of 

section V-D of chapter V of the Master Circular 

on compliance with the provisions of the 

LODR Regulations by listed entities. 

Not Applicable No such event occurred 
during the financial year 

2024-25 

13. No additional non-compliances observed: 

No additional non-compliance observed for any 

of the SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note 

etc. except as reported above. 

Not Applicable 1. Intimation of resignation 

of Mr. Kailash Ram 

Gopal Chhaparwal, non 

Executive Director dated 

30th April, 2024 was 

intimated to The BSE 

Limited on 7th May, 2024. 

2. Registration of Mr. 
Shubham Gupta and 
Mrs. Shiwaginee
 Jais
wal, Independent 
Directors is expired 
under the Database of 
Independent Directors 
and renewal is 
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due as on date. 
 
As per the verification 

and confirmation provided to 
us by the Company, there 

is no additional 
 non-compliance 

observed for any
 SEBI 

regulation/circular/guidance 

note, etc. 
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Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review: 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and 

information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and 

information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of 

Accounts of the listed entity. 

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is 

neither an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management hasconducted the affairs of the listed entity. 

 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 
 

 

 

Kirti Sharma 

Proprietor 

M. No.: A41645 

COP No.: 26705 

Peer Review Certificate no. 3710/2023 

UDIN: A041645G000514832 

 

Date : 30th May, 2025 

Place  : Kolkata 
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 ANNEXURE-I 

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION 

 

Information as required under the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 

A. Remuneration disclosures for Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

                                                                                                                                 Rs. In Lakhs 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director/KMP 

and Designation 

Remuneration 

of 

Director/KMP 

for 

Financial Year 

2024-25 

% increase in 

Remuneration 

in 

The Financial 

Year 

2024-25 

Ratio of 

remuneration 

of 

each 

Director/KMP 

to median 

remuneration 

of 

employees 

I. Directors 

1.  Mr. Tilokchand Kothari 

Chairman & Executive 

Director 

1.00 - - 

2.  Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill 

Executive Director 

3.00 - - 

II. Non-Executive Director 

3.  Mrs. Shiwaginee Jaiswal 

Independent Director 

0.30 - - 

4.  Mr. Shubham Gupta 

Independent Director 

0.30 - - 

5.  Mrs. Anju Pareek 

Independent Director 

- - - 

III. Key Managerial Personnel 

6.  Ms. Kiran Kaur (KMP) 

Chief Executive Officer 

6.00 - - 

7.  Mr. Vikramjit Singh Gill 

Chief Financial Officer 

- - - 

8.  Mrs. Archana Gupta 

(KMP) (Resigned w.e.f. 

04th August, 2025) 

Company Secretary 

6.88 - - 
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B. The percentage increase in median remuneration of the employees of the Company in the 

financial Year is NA 

C. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on 31st March, 2025 

is NA 

D. Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year NA 

E. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees 
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ANNEXURE-II 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 

COMPANY’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PHYLOSOPHY 

 

In your Company, Corporate Governance embraces the tenets of trusteeship, accountability 

and transparency. Adherence to each of these principles has set a culture in the Company, 

wherein good Corporate Governance underlines the interface with all stakeholders. In addition 

to compliance with regulatory requirements, the Company endeavours to ensure that the 

highest standards of ethical and responsible conduct are met across the organisation. With this 

belief, the Company has implemented various measures for balanced care of all stakeholders. 

A report on Corporate Governance, in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘‘SEBI Listing 

Regulations’’), is outlined below. 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Composition of Board 

 

As of March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors comprised five Directors, including three Non-

executive Independent Directors and two Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Board is 

the Executive Director (Promoter). The Company also has two Women Directors 

(Independent) on the Board. The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 

17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(the “Act”). The composition of the Board of Directors as of March 31, 2025, is as follows: 

 

Director 

(Category

) 

Relations

hip with 

other 

director 

BM 

attende

d 

during 

in FY 

2025 

Attendan

ce of the 

last AGM 

held on 

Septembe

r 30, 2024 

Directo

rship 

in 

other 

Compa

ny 

Committee 

Positions 

Directorshi

p in other 

listed 

entities 

Number of 

shares held 

in the 

Company as 

on March 

31, 2025 

  (Total 

6 BM) 

  Mem

bersh

ip 

Cha

irm

ansh

ip 

  

Tilokchan

d Kothari 

(Promoter 

Executive 

Director) 

- 6 Yes 9 0 0 3 76,45,700 

Vikramjit 

Singh Gill 

(Executive 

Director-

CFO) 

- 6 Yes 4 0 0 1 - 
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Shiwagine

e Jaiswal 
(Independ

ent 

Director) 

- 3 Yes 3 0 3 3 - 

Shubham 

Gupta  

(Independ

ent 

Director) 

- 3 Yes 3 0 1 3 - 

Anju 

Pareek 

(Independ

ent 

Director) 

- 3 Yes 2 0 2 2 - 

 

  (Includes only the membership of Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees of Indian 

public limited companies and excludes Private Companies, Foreign Companies and 

Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 

* Kailash Ram Gopal Chhaparwal has resigned from the post of Independent Director with 

effect from 30/04/2024. 

** Kuldeep Kumar has resigned from the post of Independent Director with effect from 

30/04/2024. 

***Sanjay Rajak has resigned from the post of Independent Director with effect from 

30/04/2024. 

****Madhubala Vaishnaw has resigned from the post of Independent Director with effect 

from 30/04/2024. 

 

 

Information provided to the Board 

 

Information is provided to the Board members on a regular basis for their review, input and 

approval. The quarterly Board Meeting presentations (made by the Director to the Board) 

provide adequate information to Directors on strategy, future roadmap, technology, functional 

updates, financial results and their analysis, governance matters and legal updates. The 

Statutory Agenda for Board and Committee meetings is sent well in advance as per the statutory 

timelines. All material information is incorporated in the agenda to facilitate meaningful and 

focused discussions at the meeting.  

 

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 

 

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 

and the Listing Regulations, two separate meetings of the Independent Directors of the 

Company were held on 02-12-2024, and 11-02-2025 to review the performance of Non-

Independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the Board as a whole. The Independent 

Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of the flow of information between 
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the Management and the Board and its Committees, which is necessary to effectively and 

reasonably perform and discharge their duties. 

 

Familiarisation Programmes of Independent Directors 

 

Independent Directors, when appointed, are taken through an introductory familiarization 

program/ presentation covering the history and background of the Company and its growth and 

various achievements. All Independent Directors are also familiarized with the Guidelines of 

professional conduct, Role, Function and Duties as an Independent Director under the 

Companies Act and applicable SEBI Listing Regulations. As a part of familiarisation 

programme as required under SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors are 

apprised during the Board /Committee Meetings on the Company operations, governance, 

internal control process and other relevant matters. They are also updated by way of 

presentations about the amendments to various enactments viz., Companies Act, 2013, 

applicable SEBI Listing Regulations and other important changes in the regulatory framework 

and business environment having an impact on the Company. The details of familiarization 

programme imparted to independent directors are posted on the website of the company at 

www.shalimarpro.com  

 

Orderly Succession to Board and Senior Management 

 

Pursuant to regulation 17(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the framework of succession 

planning for the Board and senior management is placed before the Board for its review. During 

the year under review, the Board of the Company satisfied itself that plans are in place for the 

orderly succession of such appointments. 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

1. Audit Committee 

 

The Audit Committee of the Board is governed by a Charter drawn in accordance with the 

requirements of the Act and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the 

Act, besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. The primary objective 

of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is to discharge responsibilities relating to 

accounting and reporting of financial practices adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries, 

surveillance of internal financial control systems as well as accounting and audit activities. 

 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include: 

 

(1) oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

(2) recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of 

the listed entity; 

(3) approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 

auditors; 

(4) reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report 

thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  
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(a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included 

in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013;  

(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; 

(c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management;  

(d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;  

(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;  

(f) disclosure of any related party transactions;  

(g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 

(5) reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to 

the board for approval; 

(6) reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through 

an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized 

for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus /  notice  and  the  

report  submitted  by  the  monitoring  agency  monitoring  the utilisation  of  proceeds  of  

a public  issue  or  rights  issue  or  preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, 

and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter; 

(7) reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and the 

effectiveness of the audit process; 

(8) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related 

parties; 

(9) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

(10) valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary; 

(11) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

(12) reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy   

of the internal control systems; 

(13) reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

(14) discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

(15) reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 

material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

(16) discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 

of the audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

(17) to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;  

(18) to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

(19) approval   of   appointment   of   chief   financial   officer   after   assessing   the 

qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

(20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit 

committee. 

(21) reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment by the holding 

company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the 

subsidiary, whichever is lower, including existing loans/advances/investments existing as 

on the date of coming into force of this provision.] 
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(22) Consider and comment on the rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 

merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders. 

 

The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:  

 

(1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;  

(2) management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

(3) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and  

(4) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor 

(5) shall be subject to review by the audit committee. 

(6) statement of deviations: 

a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).  

 b)  annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) 

 
Composition and Meeting 

 

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Committee 

(Independent Director) is Mrs. Anju Pareek and has the ability to read and understand basic 

financial statements. The other Committee members are also financially literate. The quorum 

of the Committee is two members or one-third of its members, whichever is higher with at least 

two Independent Directors. 

 

The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 

the Company. The Audit Committee met five times during FY 2024-25 on May 30, 2024, 

August 08, 2024, August 28, 2024, October 05, 2024, and November 13, 2024, and the gap 

between two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The Composition of the 

Audit Committee as of March 31, 2025, and attendance at committee meetings is as follows: 

 

Name Category Number of 

Meetings 

attended 

 Anju Pareek Non-Executive & Independent Director 05 

Shubham Gupta Non-Executive & Independent Director 05 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal  Non-Executive & Independent Director 05 

 

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted by the Board of Directors of the 

Company acts in consonance with the prescribed provisions of Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 19(4) read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee include: 
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(1) formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, 

the   remuneration   of   the   directors, key   managerial   personnel   and   other employees; 

(2) formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board 

of directors;  

(3) devising a policy on the diversity of the board of directors;  

(4) identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommending to the 

board of directors their appointment and removal. 

(5) whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 

basis of the report of the performance evaluation of the independent directors 

(6) recommend to the board all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 

management. 

 

Composition and Meeting 

 

The Committee comprises three members and all are Non-Executive Independent Directors 

and Mrs. Anju Pareek is the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee met seven times 

during the FY 2024-25 on May 07, 2024, August 28, 2024, September 26, 2024, October 05, 

2024, December 02, 2024, December 24, 2024, and March 25, 2025. The composition of the 

Committee as of March 31, 2025, and attendance at Committee meetings are as follows: 

 

Name Category Number of 

Meetings 

attended 

Anju Pareek Non-Executive & Independent Director 07 

Shubham Gupta Non-Executive & Independent Director 07 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal Non-Executive & Independent Director 07 

 

3. Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

 

The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in compliance with the 

provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations &Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). 

 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee include: 

 

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity, including complaints 

related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 

declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.  

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of 

various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the 

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring the timely receipt of dividend 

warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. 
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Composition and Meeting 

 

The Committee comprises three members and all are Non-Executive Independent Directors 

and Mrs. Shiwaginee Jaiswal is the Chairman of the Committee. The Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee oversees the redressal of stakeholders’ grievances. The Committee met once during 

the FY 2024-25 on October 05, 2024. Further, during the year, the Company received 0 

complaints. The composition of the Committee as of March 31, 2025, and attendance at 

Committee meetings are as follows: 

 

Name Category Number of 

Meeting 

attended 

Shiwaginee Jaiswal Non-Executive & Independent Director 01 

Anju Pareek Non-Executive & Independent Director 01 

Shubham Gupta Non-Executive & Independent Director 01 

 

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR 

REMUNERATION 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, 

deals with the manner of selection of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and 

Senior Management and their remuneration. This Policy is accordingly derived from the said 

Charter. 

 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID TO THE DIRECTORS 

 

The break-up of remuneration actually paid to directors (excluding provisions, if any) in FY 

2024-25 is as follows: 

 (In Lakhs) 

Director Salary/Perquisites Incentive/Commission Sitting Fee Total 

Tilokchand 

Kothari 

- - - - 

Vikramjit 

Singh Gill 

2.35 - - 2.35 

Shiwaginee 

Jaiswal  

- - - - 

Shubham 

Gupta  

- - - - 

Anju Pareek  0.05 - - 0.05 

 

GENERAL BODY MEETING 

 

Particulars of last three Annual General Meeting 
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Date Venue Time Special Resolutions that 

were passed with requisite 

majority 

30/09/2024 

(AGM) 

“Vyanjan Banquet Hall” 46, 

First Floor, Oshiwara Link 

Plaza, Next to Oshiwara 

Police Station, Near 

Maheshwari Bhawan, Above 

“Vyanjan” Sweets, Link 

Road, Extn, Andheri (West), 

Mumbai-4000102 

10:00 AM 

to 

11:00 AM 

- 

30/09/2023 

(AGM) 

2nd Floor, CKP Hall, Tejpal 

Scheme Rd 4, Udyan Vikas 

Society, Vile Parle East, Vile 

Parle, Mumbai-400057, 

Maharashtra India 

01:00 PM 

to 

02:00 PM 

- 

30/09/2022 

(AGM) 

2nd Floor, CKP Hall, Tejpal 

Scheme Rd 4, Udyan Vikas 

Society, Vile Parle East, Vile 

Parle, Mumbai-400057 

01:30 PM 

to 

02:25 PM 

- 

 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

a. Quarterly Financial Results are published in Active Times and Mumbai Lakshadeep. 

b. Results are also posted on the Company’s website: www.shalimarpro.com and the websites 

of BSE Limited (BSE). 

c. The Company displays official news releases and the presentations made to institutional 

investors or to analysts on the website. 

d. BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’): BSE Listing Centre 

are web-based application designed by BSE for corporates. All periodical compliance 

filings like shareholding pattern, corporate governance report, media releases, among 

others, are filed electronically on these applications. 

 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 

CIN L01111MH1985PLC228508 

Annual General Meeting Day: Tuesday 

Date: 30/09/2025 

Time: 10:00 AM 

Venue : “Vyanjan Banquet Hall” 46, First 

Floor, Oshiwara Link Plaza, Next to 

Oshiwara Police Station, Near Maheshwari 

Bhawan, Above “ Vyanjan” Sweets, Link 

Road, Extn, Andheri (West), Mumbai-

4000102 

Book Closure Dates 24/09/2025 - 30/09/2025 

http://www.shalimarpro.com/
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Dividend Payment Date Since no dividend has been declared for the 

year 2023-24, hence payment date is not 

applicable 

ISIN INE435E01020 

Financial Year 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 

 

Financial Calendar for FY 2024-25 (Financial Year April 1 to March 31) (tentative) 

First Quarter Results End of June 2024 

Half Yearly Results End of September 2024 

Third Quarter Results End of December 2024 

Fourth Quarter/Annual Results End of March 2025 

 

Listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange 

The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE. Annual listing fees for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 have been paid to BSE. The Stock Code of the Exchange are as under: 

 

Exchange Code Address 

BSE 512499 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 

 

Stock Price Data 

 

Month BSE Monthly High BSE Monthly Low 

April 2024 0.53 0.49 

May 2024 0.61 0.49 

June 2024 0.70 0.56 

July 2024 0.76 0.59 

August 2024 0.72 0.57 

September 2024 0.65 0.59 

October 2024 0.64 0.55 

November 2024 0.66 0.58 

December 2024 0.69 0.58 

January 2025 0.60 0.51 

February 2025 0.55 0.49 

March 2025 0.50 0.49 

 

Stock Performance 

 

The performance of the Company’s stock prices is given in the chart below: 

Stock Performance FY 2024-25 
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Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025 

Sr. 

No. 

Category Cases % of Cases No. of Shares % of 

shareholding 

1.  0-100 56756 31.99 2265731 0.23 

2.  101-500 41699 23.51 11770137 1.20 

3.  501-1000 26254 14.80 22904664 2.33 

4.  1001-2000 19311 10.89 30494046 3.10 

5.  2001-3000 7569 4.27 19460179 1.98 

6.  3001-4000 3616 2.04 13095497 1.33 

7.  4001-5000 5247 2.96 25473455 2.59 

8.  5001-10000 8318 4.69 67772540 6.89 

9.  10001-20000 4221 2.38 62558175 6.36 

10.  20001-50000 2801 1.58 92285794 9.38 

11.  50000 and above 1601 0.90 636248095 64.64 

 TOTAL 177393 100.00 984328313.00 100.00 

Face Value: Rs. 1/- Per Share 

Equity Holding Pattern as on March 31, 2025 

Category Number of Shares % of Equity 

Promoter Group 5,93,67,519 6.03 

Banks, Mutual Funds, Trusts, Govt & Insurance 

Companies, Indian Financial Institutions, etc. 

200 0.00 

FIIs, Foreign National, Foreign Portfolio Investors 

and NRIs 

68,71,064 0.70 

Bodies Corporates & NBFCs Registered with RBI 5,33,78,162 5.42 

Individuals (Public) & HUFs 86,47,10,367 87.84 

Clearing Members 1001 0.0001 

Others (including IEPF) -  

Total 984328313 100 
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Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity 

The Company’s equity shares are compulsorily traded in electronic form. As on March 31, 

2025, shares 98,29,08,054 representing 99.85% of total equity capital were held in electronic 

form. The Shareholders can hold the shares in demat form either through NSDL or CDSL. The 

ISIN allotted to the Company is INE435E01020. 

 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date & 

likely impact on equity – Nil 

 

In case the securities are suspended from trading, the director’s report shall explain the 

reason thereof: None 

 

Share Transfer System 

 

Requests for Transfer/Transmission of shares held in physical form can be lodged with the 

Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited, Mumbai. 

The requests are generally processed within 10-15 days of receipt of documents, if documents 

are complete and valid in all respects. Shares under objection are returned within 7-10 days. 

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Company submits to Stock 

Exchanges a certificate, on a yearly basis, issued by a Practicing Company Secretary for due 

compliance with share transfer formalities by the Company. 

 

Registrar to an issue and share transfer agents 

 

Adroit Corporate Services Private Limited is the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. 

Shareholders, beneficial owners and Depository Participants (DPs) can send/deliver the 

documents/correspondence relating to the Company’s share transfer activity, etc. to Adroit 

Corporate Services Private Limited at the following address: 

 

Adroit Corporate Services (P) Limited 

19/20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, 1st floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (East), 

Mumbai- 400059 

Tel No.: 28596060/28503748 Website: www.adroitcorporate.com 

 

Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer 

Agents at the abovementioned address. In case of unresolved complaints, the members may 

also write to the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer at the office of the Company as 

detailed below: 

 

Registered Office: 

Shalimar Productions Limited 

A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-

400053 

Phone No.: 022 49647979 

http://www.adroitcorporate.com/
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E-mail: contact@shalimarpro.com 

 

Plant Location: The Company has a media business which is operated from the registered 

office, hence the information about plant location is not applicable 

 

Credit Ratings: NIL 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 

Compliance Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary 

A certificate from M/s Kirti Sharma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, confirming 

compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Listing Regulations, 

is attached to this Report. 

 

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of 

loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’:  Nil 

 

Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of 

incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of such 

subsidiaries: NIL (Company does not have any kind of subsidiary Company.) 

 

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutional placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A): During the year Company 

did not raise funds through any kind of issue. 

 

Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed 

entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related 

to capital markets, during the three years;  

 

Related Party Transactions 

 

All Related Party Transactions are approved by the Audit Committee. Approval of the Board 

is taken, as needed, in accordance with the Act and the Listing Regulations. There were no 

materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year that were in 

conflict with the interests of the Company. No transaction with the Promoters, Directors or 

their relatives has a potential conflict with the Company’s interest. The related party 

transactions are entered into based on considerations of various business exigencies. All related 

party transactions are negotiated on an arm's length basis and are intended to further the 

Company’s interests.  

 

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Act and Regulation 23 

of the Listing Regulations during the FY 2024-25 were on an arm’s length basis. Suitable 

disclosures as required under the applicable Accounting Standards have been made in the notes 

to the Financial Statements. The Board has approved the policy on Related Party Transactions, 

which has been uploaded on the Company’s website in “Investors” at www.shalimarpro.com 

 

http://www.shalimarpro.com/
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Disclosures in relation to the sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:  

 

The status of complaints is as follows: 

 

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year – Nil 

b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year – Nil 

c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year – Nil 

 

Whistle Blower Mechanism 

 

The Company has adopted a Whistle-blower Mechanism, which has been communicated to all 

employees along with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics. The Whistle-blower policy is 

the mechanism to help the Company’s directors, employees, and all external stakeholders to 

raise their concerns about any malpractice, impropriety, abuse or wrongdoing at an early stage 

and in the right way, without fear of victimisation, subsequent discrimination or disadvantage. 

The policy encourages raising concerns within the Company rather than overlooking a 

problem.  

 

All Complaints under this policy are reported to the Director - Management Assurance, who is 

independent of operating management and businesses. ‘Complaints’ can also be reported on a 

web-based portal, designated email id or toll-free number as below: 

 

Web based Portal www.shalimarpro.com 

Email: contact@shalimarpro.com 

Address: A-9 Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (W), Mumbai-

400053 

Tel No. 022-45170487 

                                                                                 

Disclosures: 

 

The Company has not received any complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, or 

involuntary labour during FY 2024-25 

 

This Corporate Governance Report of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 

2025, is in compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance under Listing 

Regulations. 

 

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional 

placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of the Listing Regulation. 

 

Total fee for all services paid by the Company to M/s Bhatter & Associates, Chartered 

Accountant is Rs. 50,000/- 

 

During the year Company has accepted the recommendation of committees of the board that 

were mandatorily required. 
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The Company has obtained a certificate from M/s. Kirti Sharma & Associates, a company 

secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The said certificate is 

attached to this Report. 

 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 

 

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carries out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 

on a quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total 

issued and listed capital. The Audit report is submitted to the stock exchanges and is also placed 

before the Board. The audit confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with 

the aggregate of the total number of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in 

dematerialised form (held with NSDL and CDSL). 

 

Compliances regarding Insider Trading 

 

The Company had in place a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Corporate 

Disclosure Practices’ in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992, as amended. These regulations have been substituted by SEBI with a new 

set of Regulations, which have come into effect from 15th May, 2015. The policy lays down 

procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the 

Company and cautioning them of the consequences of violations. Accordingly, the Board at its 

meeting held on 29th May 2015 has approved and adopted the following: a) Code of Practices 

and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information; and b) Code 

of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by its employees and other connected 

persons. The code referred to in (a) above is placed on the Company’s website 

www.shalimarpro.com. The said codes are being adhered to with effect from 15th May 2015. 

 

Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements  

 

The Company has generally complied with all the mandatory requirements as stipulated under 

Regulation 34(3) read with Para C of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the extent applicable to the Company. 

 

Non-Mandatory: 

 

 Unmodified audit report: The Auditor’s opinion on the Financial Statements is unmodified. 

 Shareholder Rights: As the Company’s quarterly/half yearly/yearly results are published in 

English newspapers having circulation all over India and in Marathi newspapers widely 

circulated in Maharashtra, the same are not sent to each household of shareholders. 

 Reporting of internal auditor: M/s. Lakhpat M. Trivedi, Chartered Accountant, Mumbai 

(Membership No. 109047) was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for the FY 

2023-2024 and the Internal Audit Report prepared by them was placed before the Audit 

Committee. 
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 Separate post of Chairman and Managing Director: Mr. Tilokchand Kothari, Executive 

Director, holds the Chairmanship of the Company, whereas there is no Managing Director. 

Hence, the Company had kept both the posts separate. 

 

Details of outstanding shares in the Unclaimed Suspense Account: Nil 
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

(As per Provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time) 
 
To, 
The Members of 
Shalimar Productions Limited,  
A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, 
Plot No. B-31, Off Link Road, 
Andheri (West), Mumbai-400053 
 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Shalimar 
Productions Limited (‘the Company’), for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 
paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (Listing 
Regulations). 
 
The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI 
Listing Regulations is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with 
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India.  The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of 
Ethics prevalent in this regard. 
 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor the efficiency of effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 
 
For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
 
Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 3710/2023 
 
Date: 30.05.2025 
Place: Kolkata 
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATE 

(AS PER SCHEDULE II OF LISTING REGULATION) 

 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors, 

Shalimar Productions Limited 

 

Compliance Certificate as required under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

We hereby certify that: 

 

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements for the Financial Year 

2024-25 and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:  

 

1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 

fact or contain statements that might be misleading;  

 

2) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and 

are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

 

B. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

listed entity during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s 

code of conduct.  

 

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 

Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the 

audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 

which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 

deficiencies. 

 

D. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee 

 

i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;  

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  
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iii. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant 

role in the listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting.  

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 

 

_________________  ___________________ 

Tilokchand Kothari  Vikramjit Singh Gill 

Director                                  Director 

DIN: 00413627                       DIN: 08875328 

                                                     

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08/09/2025 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

In accordance with Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that, all Board Members and the Senior Management 

Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics of the 

Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 

 

 

_________________  ___________________ 

Tilokchand Kothari  Vikramjit Singh Gill 

Director                                  Director 

DIN: 00413627                       DIN: 08875328 

                                                     

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08/09/2025 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members 

Shalimar Productions Limited 

CIN: L01111MH1985PLC228508 

A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot No. B-31,  

Off Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400053 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and the disclosures received 

from the Directors of M/s. Shalimar Productions Limited, having CIN-

L01111MH1985PLC228508, and registered office at A-9, Shree Siddhivinayak Plaza, Plot 

No. B-31, Off Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai-400053, (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 

accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 

Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including 

Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 

necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify 

that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year 

ending on March 31, 2025, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry 

of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority: 

 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Directors DIN Date of 
appointment in 

Company 

1. Tilokchand Manaklal Kothari 00413627 24/08/2010
2. Vikramjit Singh Gill 08875328 23/09/2020
3. Shiwaginee Jaiswal 08763022 26/09/2024
4. Shubham Gupta  10130851 26/09/2024
5. Anju Pareek  07144713 02/12/2024
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Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these based on our verification. 

 

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

For Kirti Sharma & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 

 

Kirti Sharma 
Proprietor 
M. No.: A41645 
COP No.: 26705 
Peer Review Certificate no. 3710/2023 
UDIN: A041645G000515514 
 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 30.05.2025 
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ANNEXURE-III 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

Pursuant to Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report is as under: 

Media & Entertainment industry 

Introduction 

The Media & Entertainment industry has immense power to influence, shape, and transform 

society. The industry is witnessing a massive transformation in the current scenario. It was a 

rollercoaster ride in the past few years for the whole industry when it came up with a few 

struggles, difficulties in producing content, the closure of cinema halls and a cut back in 

spending on advertisements during the pandemic. However, this situation was followed by a 

cycle of a strong revival. The agility and inclination to face and overcome challenges are 

being proven by this industry through the ways it has revived its charm and performed better 

than pre-pandemic. The core of this industry is to keep pace with the changing environment 

to produce quality and relatable content. The disruptive innovations that are at their peak are 

changing consumer behaviour, and technology is leading to a risk for the irrelevance of 

the media and entertainment industry. The popularity of YouTube videos, podcasts, Over-the-

Top (OTT) media services, and digital broadcasting has given rise to a variety of occupations 

in the sector, including journalism, advertising, digital marketing, and public relations. 

Some facts about the Media and Entertainment industry— 

• By 2024, it is expected that India’s media & entertainment industry will reach US$ 30.9 

billion. 

• By 2025, there will likely be more than 40 million smart connected TVs, up from 10 million 

in 2021. 

• The digital media segment grew 29% to reach US$ 5.2 billion in 2021. 

• The online gaming segment grew 28% in 2021 to reach US$ 1.2 billion and is expected to 

reach US$ 1.9 billion by 2024. 

• In 2021, there was a 28% growth in the filmed entertainment segment. Around 757 films 

were released, with over 100 films released directly on video streaming platforms. 

• In 2021, the animation and VFX segment grew 103% to reach US$ 1 billion and is expected 

to reach US$ 2.2 billion by 2024. 

Industry Overview and Opportunities 

India is the second-largest online news-consuming nation, the world’s second-largest market 

in terms of app downloads and the world’s largest fantasy sports market with a user base of 

130 million. India also secures fourth rank in Information and Communication Technology 

(ICT) services export. The growth in television households will continue to grow at over 5% 

https://www.ibef.org/industry/media-entertainment-india
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till 2025, which is driven by connected TVs. It is estimated to cross 40 million by 2025 and 

DD-free dishes could cross 50 million in the same year. 

The subscriber base of the Indian telecommunications market is 1.18 billion which results in 

India being the world’s second largest in the segment. The mobile economy is booming at a 

good pace and constitutes around 98% of all telephone subscriptions. 

Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology (MeitY) aims to have a tectonic shift in 

digital strategy to harness the opportunity to create an economic value addition of US$ 800 

billion by the year 2024 and US$ 1 trillion by the year 2025 through the right digital 

interventions. 

• With the rise in demand for regional content consumption, the share of regional content in 

TV and OTT consumption is expected to reach 60% and 50% respectively by 2025. 

• The number of video viewers has increased to 497 million. 

• Indians spent the maximum time (1.5 billion hours) on online sports worldwide, around a 

third of the global time spent on sports apps. 

• It is estimated that digital ad spending in India will reach US$ 21 billion by 2028. 

The industry growth is being supported by various government initiatives, such as digitizing 

the cable distribution sector to attract greater institutional funding, increasing the FDI limit 

from 74% to 100% in cable and direct-to-home (DTH) satellite platforms, and granting 

industry status to the film industry for easy access to institutional finance. The Ministry of 

Information and Broadcasting set up Film Facilitation Office (FFO) which acts as a single 

window clearance and facilitation point for producers and production companies with a view 

to assisting them in getting the requisite filming permissions. In 2020, the government of 

India also announced the plan to support and develop a centre specifically for Animation, 

Visual-effects, Gaming, and Comic (AVGC). 

Opportunities 

India is the world’s second-largest telecommunications market with a subscriber base of 1.17 

billion as of August 2022. In a country with 300 million households, there are around one-

third of households who are still without television set and this data depicts that there’s an 

opportunity for growth and development in the sector. The broadcasting industry can work as 

a powerful source which can educate, inspire, and empower viewers with strong opinions and 

views. Therefore, it is important that the government and industry work together to give 

every Indian home access to television. 

Globally, the Animation, Visual-effects, Gaming and Comics (AVGC) sector is an industry 

of US$ 800 billion. However, India has a huge talent force supporting this industry while it 

accounts for less than one percent share in the industry. The AVGC sector has the potential to 

boom and become the next IT sector of India and the target could be around 5% in a year, 

which will be close to a US$ 40 billion opportunity. The same growth has the potential to 

create around 1,60,000 jobs across the nation. The gaming industry is booming as a high-
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growth segment along with the contribution of skill-based gaming. Under this segment, India 

has least percentage share if compared globally, however, India has a substantial growth 

opportunity with the availability of skills and policies supporting it. 

Film making industry in India is being supported by nature itself, the opportunity expands 

with the beautiful and diverse locations and landscapes, good infrastructure, and high-quality 

manpower; India has all the ingredients required to unlock and expand this opportunity and 

become a preferred destination for international film shoots. 

The opportunities are not only in India, but there is also an option to take Indian content to 

global audiences. South India has set a great example of the same across the globe as it has 

demonstrated that good content travels beyond boundaries and language barriers. India has a 

strong set of ecosystems of talent, production efficiencies and creative capabilities, and it 

generates huge opportunities to mark our strength and culture on the global stage. The 

industry can come together, explore, and create content that can break all global boundaries 

and become a storyteller to the world. The growth and stories of regional movies are better 

than other cumulative work. However, the industry has an opportunity to create masterpieces 

that can cross geographical boundaries and establish relatability around the globe. Moving 

towards print media, music, and radio, these subsectors continue to be important contributors 

to the industry. There are various changes in this industry with ongoing development and 

improvements. 

Outlook 

For the entertainment and media industries, 2022 marked an important inflection point. Total 

global entertainment and media (E&M) revenue rose 5.4% in 2022, to US$2.32 trillion. That 

represents a sharp deceleration from the 10.6% growth rate in 2021, when economies and 

industries globally were starting to rebound from the upheaval caused by the covid-19 

pandemic. And in each of the next five years, the rate of growth will decline sequentially, so 

that by 2027, revenue will grow just 2.8% from 2026. That’s slower than the 3.1% rate of 

overall economic growth that the International Monetary Fund (IMF) projects for that year. 

The slowdown, caused in large measure by sluggish consumer spending, is pushing 

companies to reset expectations, refocus inward and seek ways to recharge growth. They’re 

doing so by tapping into the many geographical and sectoral hotspots that offer opportunities 

and by harnessing emerging technology—in particular, by exploring the power of generative 

AI as an engine of productivity for the creative process. 

The causes of the slowdown are many. For some key sectors, the surge in revenue and 

attention that they experienced early in the pandemic ran out of steam. The creation of 

podcasts, which was among the industry’s major success stories during the pandemic, fell by 

an estimated 80% between 2020 and 2022. 

The Indian Digital Ecosystem 

According to a report by EY, (as seen in the data below) the M&E industry increased by Rs. 

348 billion (US$ 4.17 billion) (19.9%) to Rs. 2.1 trillion (US$ 25.2 billion), a 10% increase 

over pre-pandemic 2019 levels. Television remained the largest segment with 10% growth 

https://www.forbes.com/sites/forbesagencycouncil/2022/03/10/5-reasons-why-podcast-advertising-has-thrived-through-the-pandemic/?sh=28e4582241b4
https://www.theverge.com/2023/1/17/23559638/new-podcasts-down-apple-spotify-amazon-audible-hot-pod-summit
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and 166 million households. The digital media reinforced its position as a strong number two 

with a growth rate of more than 30%, followed by a resurgent print. Digital media expanded 

the greatest, reaching Rs. 132 billion (US$ 1.58 billion), increasing its contribution to the 

M&E sector from 16% in 2019 to 27% in 2022. 

Segment wise Revenue share of the Indian M&E Sector 

Segments 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023E 2025E CAGR 

22-25 

Television 787 685 720 709 727 796 3.9% 

Digital Media 308 326 439 571 671 862 14.7% 

Print 296 190 227 250 262 279 3.7% 

Filmed 

Entertainment 

191 72 93 172 194 228 9.8% 

Online 

Gaming 

65 79 101 135 167 231 19.5% 

Animation 

and VFX 

95 53 83 107 133 190 21.1% 

Live Events 83 27 32 73 95 134 22.2% 

Out of home 

Media 

39 16 20 37 41 53 12.8% 

Music 15 15 19 22 25 33 14.7% 

Radio 31 14 16 21 22 26 7.5% 

Total 1910 1476 1750 2098 2339 2832 10.5% 

 Note: All figures are gross of taxes (in Rs. billion) for calendar years            Sources: EY 

 

The Way Forward 

 
The media and entertainment industry has seen robust growth with continuous improvement 

and various approaches as well. For the past two years, the industry has shown immense 

resilience and there has been a bounce back to the pre-covid scenarios. The pandemic 

undoubtedly created a disruption in the consumption habits of consumers. However, with the 

advent of ongoing digitalization and new technologies, the media and film industry is 

expected to show significant growth over the next few years. The strong growth in OTT, 

gaming, animation and VFX is cumulatively estimated to contribute to around US$ 55-70 

billion by 2030. The industry continuously showcases multimodal growth with digital video 

leading to a consumption boom, however the potential growth depends on the realization of 

supply and demand side factors. The integration of content and advertisement is growing 

more prevalent as digital advertising moves toward more "interactive" commercials. 

Platforms for short-form video are expanding and offer advertisers a special value 

proposition. With a more than ten-fold increase in gaming companies over the past ten years, 

India is also growing as a talent hotspot. Over the past few years, this has caused a boom in 

VC funding for the industry. After a challenging 2020, the film industry has demonstrated 

optimistic indications of resurgence. Future growth prospects include the expansion of 

content films, direct-to-digital releases, and regional box office growth. The development of 

https://www.ibef.org/industry/media-entertainment-india
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the industry's infrastructure, intellectual capital, and financial incentives depends on the post-

production, VFX, and animation sectors in India. 

 

Company Overview 

M/s. Shalimar Productions Limited (the "Company"), originally incorporated in 1985 and 

rebranded from Shalimar Agro Products Ltd to its current name in 2004, has long been a 

player in the media and entertainment industry. Over the years, the Company has made 

significant contributions to the production of regional albums and films. 

In line with its vision to enhance its presence in the dynamic film and entertainment 

landscape, the Company is excited to announce the forthcoming launch of the NJOYMAX 

OTT platform. Management is confident that this platform will debut in the fiscal year 2024-

25. The strategic shift towards digital content, including original films and web series, 

positions the Company to capitalize on the expanding digital production market. 

Additionally, the Company has made notable strides in the North Indian Punjabi market with 

the successful release of the Punjabi film “Majnoo” earlier this year. This achievement has 

established a strong foothold in the region, and the Company anticipates gaining further 

traction and recognition within the Punjabi film industry in the future. 

Financial Overview 

Net Profit Ratio – 3.53% 

Current Ratio – 31.12 

Debt Equity Ratio – 0.01 

Debtors Turnover – 2.73 

Inventory Turnover – 0.04 

Operating Profit Margin -4.76% 

Risk Management 

The Company has established a risk management framework to identify, manage and 

mitigate risks arising from external and internal factors. A risk identification exercise is 

carried out periodically to identify various strategic, operational, financial and compliance 

related risks. These risks are evaluated for their likelihood and potential impact. Few risks 

and uncertainties that can affect the business include an accelerated shift in consumer 

preferences towards digital propositions, attraction and retention of right talent in new 

environment post the pandemic, adverse macroeconomic conditions including impact of 

geopolitical tensions influencing revenue growth and risk of newsprint price volatility & 

supply constraints resulting in higher direct costs. Further, an intense competitive landscape 

along with the risk of cyber threat and data breach remain some of the key concerns faced by 

the Company. The risks to the Company include, but are not limited to, the following factors: 

• Consumer Preferences: Rapid shifts in consumer tastes toward digital content. 
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• Talent Acquisition: Challenges in attracting and retaining skilled professionals. 

• Macroeconomic Conditions: Adverse economic factors and geopolitical tensions 

affecting revenue. 

• Production Costs: Fluctuations in production costs and supply chain disruptions. 

• Competition: Intense competition and pressure to differentiate offerings. 

• Cybersecurity: Risks of cyber threats, data breaches, and technology advancements. 

• Regulatory Compliance: Navigating complex regulations and ensuring compliance. 

• Intellectual Property: Risks of IP theft, infringement, and licensing issues. 

• Market Saturation: Oversaturation and fragmentation of the market. 

• Revenue Volatility: Dependence on unpredictable advertising and subscription 

revenues. 

• Content Quality: Risks of low-quality content damaging brand reputation. 

• Expansion: Challenges in new market entry and localization. 

Internal Control System & Adequacy 

The Company has an effective system of internal controls corresponding with its size, nature 

of business and complexity of operations. The internal controls mechanism comprises a well-

defined organizational structure with clearly laid out authority and responsibility matrix and 

comprehensive policies, guidelines and procedures governing the operations of respective 

functions. These controls have been designed to safeguard the assets and interests of the 

Company and its stakeholders and also ensure compliance with Company’s policies, 

procedures and applicable regulations. The Company has an established Code of Conduct 

(CoC) framework and Whistle-blower mechanism, which is duly approved by the Board of 

Directors in compliance with the regulatory requirements.  

Disclaimer 

The information and opinions contained in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

(MDAR) are based on current expectations, estimates, and projections made by M/s. 

Shalimar Productions Limited (the "Company") as of the date hereof. These statements are 

forward-looking and inherently subject to uncertainties and risks, including but not limited to, 

changes in market conditions, economic factors, regulatory developments, and other risks as 

outlined in the risk factors section of this report. Actual results may differ materially from 

those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements. 

The Company assumes no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements or 

information, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. Readers are 

cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only 

as of the date hereof. 
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This MDAR should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements and other 

disclosures, which provide a more comprehensive understanding of its financial performance 

and position. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 

 

 

_________________  ___________________ 

Tilokchand Kothari  Vikramjit Singh Gill 

Director                                  Director 

DIN: 00413627                       DIN: 08875328 

                                                     

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 08/09/2025                                                     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of Shalimar Production Limited 
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements  

Opinion  
We have audited the standalone financial statements of Shalimar Production Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement of Loss and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2025, and Loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

The balances of Loans & Advances, Sundry Debtors and Sundry Creditors are subject to 
confirmation, reconciliation and consequent adjustment, if any. In the absence of such 
confirmations, we are unable to comment on the accuracy and completeness of the same and 
their consequential impact on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. There are no 
key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon  

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the Directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
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fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance and Cash Flow Statement of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.  
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatement 
in the Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in 
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.  
 



 

83 | A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 4 - 2 5  
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 
 

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16), In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and after relying on the 
certificate of company secretary of the company, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the 
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16) which 
are required to be commented upon by us. 
 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

 
ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.  
 

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts,  
 
(i) no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities 'Intermediaries', with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
 
(ii) no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity (ies), including 
foreign entities 'Funding Parties', with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 
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(iii) Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us believe 
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement. 
 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly 
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable for 
the year under consideration. 

 
 
For M/s. Bhatter and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 131411W 
 
 
 
CA Gopal Bhatter 
Partner 
M. No. 411226 
UDIN: 25411226BMIQLV5741 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2025 
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ANNEXURE A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
[Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our 
Report of even date to the members of Shalimar Productions Limited on the accounts of the 
company for the year ended 31st March, 2025]  
 

i. In respect of its Fixed Assets: 
a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of fixed assets. 
b) As explained to us Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the 

year in accordance with the phased program of verification adopted by the management which, 
in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

c) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

d) During the period under review, the Company acquired fixed assets, which were internally 
evaluated.  

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 
March 31, 2025 

f)  For holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

 
ii. a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our 

opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no 
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such 
verification. 
 
b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 5 crore, in aggregate, 
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
c) For the valuation of closing stock, the management has obtained a valuation certificate from an 
independent chartered accountant and presented it to us for verification. 

 
iii. (a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has 

made investments in/ provided any guarantee or security/ granted any loans or advances in the 
nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties. 
 
(b) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 
 
(c)  The company does not have any outstanding as of the balance sheet date, with respect to loans, 
advances, and guarantees or security provided to entities other than subsidiaries, joint ventures, 
and associates. An unsecured loan has been granted of Rs. 92.70 lakhs despite the borrowers lacking 
net worth, and no interest has been charged. Consequently, we are unable to comment on the 
necessary quantum of provision required for this matter. 
 
(d) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the investments 
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made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans 
and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s 
interest. 
 
(e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans 
and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest 
has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular. 
 
(f) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no amounts 
overdue for more than ninety days. 
 
(g) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, there are no loan or 
advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or 
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. 
 
In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

 
iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in 
whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provision of section 185 of the Act and the 
Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in 
accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. The provisions of section 185 and 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 
 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no amounts 
outstanding which are in the nature of deposits as on March 31, 2025 and the Company has not 
accepted any deposits during the year.  

 
vi. The provision of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the 

Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the 
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.  

 
vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us:  

 
(a) Amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues, 

including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales 
tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value-added tax, cess, and other material statutory 
dues, have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate 
authorities, except for the following: 
 
1) Provident Fund: The Company does not have the practice of deducting and depositing the 

provident fund for employees. 
 

2) Income Tax: Income tax for the assessment years 2019-20 is outstanding and has not been 
paid as of the period under review. 

 
3) Employees' State Insurance Corporation (ESIC): According to the management, ESIC is not 

applicable to the Company; therefore, no liability has been incurred towards it. 
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4) Professional Tax: The professional tax payment for the year under review has not been 

paid, nor has any provision been made towards it. 
 

5) Advance Tax: The Company has not paid any advance tax for the period under review, 
thus incurring additional interest liability on the same. 

 
(b) No undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, 

employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, 
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except the following: 

 
(c) Details of statutory dues, which have not been deposited on account of dispute are 
given below: 
 

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

ix. a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to 
any lender during the year.  
 
b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 
 
c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are not able to 
verify whether the term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purposes for which 
they were availed. 
 
d. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are unable to 

Nature of 
the statute 

Nature of dues 
Period to which 
the amount 
relates 

Amount 

Professional 
Tax PT Payment 

FY 2020-21 to FY 
2023-24 

10,000 

Provident 
Fund PF Payment FY 2023-24 

Calculated as per 
salary terms 

Income Tax 

   
TDS FY  2019-20 57,950 

TDS FY  2020-21 17,290 

TDS FY  2021-22 3,070 

TDS FY  2017-18 1,090 

TDS FY  2018-19 45,110 

TDS FY  2016-17 400 
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verify whether the funds raised on a short-term basis have been utilized for long-term purposes. 
 
e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and accordingly, 
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) (f) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
f. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies. 
 

x. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(b)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, 
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order 
is not applicable. 
 

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been noticed or 
reported during the year.  Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) (a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(b) Since there is no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person 
has been noticed or reported during the year, paragraph 3 (xi) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
whistle-blower complaint, have been received by the Company during the year. 

 
xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 

a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.  
 

xiii. According In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act as per 
the data provided by the company secretary of the company. Where applicable, the details of such 
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable 
accounting standards. 

 
xiv. The company has not obtained declarations from sundry creditors under the MSME Act. Therefore, 

we are unable to comment on the provision of tax under Section 43(B)(h) regarding outstanding 
creditors as of March 31, 2025. Additionally, we cannot determine the provision required for 
interest on payments to MSME registered suppliers under Section 16 of the MSMED Act for delays 
in payment. 

 
xv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate inhouse internal audit system commensurate with 

the size and the nature of its business. 
 
(b) We have not obtained the in-house internal audit reports for the year under audit. Therefore, 
we were unable to consider these reports in determining the nature, timing, and extent of our audit 
procedures. 
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xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us and as per management representation 

letter, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with them. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.  

 
xvii. (a)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 

not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 
 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate 
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable. 
 
(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other companies in the Group. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xviii. There have been no resignations from the position of statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. M/s. Bhatter and Associates Chartered Accountants are serving as our statutory auditors for 
the current year.  

 
xix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 

the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
board of directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

 
xx. Provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company. 

 
xxi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does 

not have investments in subsidiaries/ associates or joint venture companies. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
For M/s. Bhatter and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 131411W 
 
 
CA Gopal Bhatter 
Partner 
M. No. 411226 
UDIN: 25411226BMIQLV5741 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2025 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
Shalimar Production Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our 
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements. 
 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements 
A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
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designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, based on the management's assessment and internal control procedures 
conducted in-house, the Company has internal financial controls pertaining to financial 
statements that are adequate in all material respects. These controls, based on the criteria 
established by the Company and considering the essential components outlined in the 
Guidance Note, were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025. 
 
 
For M/s. Bhatter and Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 131411W 
 
 
 
CA Gopal Bhatter 
Partner 
M. No. 411226 
UDIN: 25411226BMIQLV5741 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2025 
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1. Significant Accounting Policies 
1.1 Basis of Preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules,2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules,2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
 
These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are the Seventh financials with 
comparatives, prepared under Ind AS and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 
are the first financials with comparatives, prepared under Ind AS. For all previous periods, the Company 
had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under 
companies (Accounting Standard) Rule, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP’) used for its statutory reporting requirement in India. 
 
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements, 
including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2017. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
b) Assets held for sale-measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
c) Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value 

 
1.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
a) Current vs Non-Current Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current 
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 Expected to be realised within twelve months after reporting period, or 
 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 

at least twelve months after the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
 Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle. 
 Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
 Due to be settled within twelve months after reporting period, or 
 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period. 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.  
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in 
cash and cash equivalent. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 
b) Use of estimates and judgements 
The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously 
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and 
factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the 
existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the results are known/materialised. 
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The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 
occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting 
date. 
 

c) Property, Plant & Equipment  
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP, 
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment. 
Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria 
are met, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. In case of assets acquired 
in exchange for a non-monetary asset, the cost of such an item of property, plant and equipment is 
measured at fair value unless (a) the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or (b) the fair 
value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable. All other repair and 
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 
 
The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the 
component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is 
materially different from that of the remaining asset. 

 
An item of Property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognised. 
 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
 

d) Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment 
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is calculated on a written down value (WDV) basis using 
the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management which is as per the rates 
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

e) Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 
 

f) Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually 
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.  
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, 
trade discounts and volume rebates. 
 

g) Borrowing Cost 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. 
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h) Employee Benefits 
Short term benefits and post-employment benefits are accounted in the period during which the services 
have been rendered. 

 
i) Taxation 
Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that 
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss 
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to 
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 
 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or 
simultaneously. 
 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date 
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either 
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity 
and the same taxation authority. 
 

j) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal or its value in use. Recoverable 
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount ofvan 
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount. 
 
Impairment losses, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 



 

100 | P a g e  
 

 
k) Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss, net of any 
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting 
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as part of finance costs. 
 

l) Contingent Liability 
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in 
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured 
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 
financial statements. 
 

m) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral 
part of the Company’s cash management. 
 

n) Investments and other financial assets 
(i) Classification 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
(1) Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 

through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and 
(2) Those measured at amortised cost. 

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows. 
(ii) Measurement 
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of 
financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 
Debt Instruments:  
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing 
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments 
into following categories: 
Amortised Cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 
Fair value through profit and loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost are 
measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included 
in other income. 
 

  Equity instruments: 
The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
at fair value through profit and loss.  
 
(iii) Impairment of financial assets 
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The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, 
industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate 
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk. 
 

o) Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: 
- The profit attributable to owners of the Company 
- By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted 

for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 
 
Diluted earnings per shares 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to 
take into account: 
- The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential 

equity shares, and 
- The weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding 

assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 
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27. Related Party Transactions 
As per Ind AS-24, the disclosures of transactions with the Related Party are given below: 
(i) List of Related Parties 

a) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)  

1. Ms.Kiran Kaur Chief Executive Officer
2. Mr.Vikramjit Singh Gill Chief Financial Officer and Executive 

Director
3. Mr.Tilokchanda Kothari Executive Director
4. Mrs.Archana Gupta Company Secretary (upto 04/08/2025)  

 
b) Independent Directors 

1. Mr. Shubham Gupta 
2. Ms. Anju Pareek 
3. Ms.Shubhangee Jaiswal 

 
c) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel 

1. Mr. Vishal Kothari 
2. Mrs. Surbhi Kothari 
3. Mrs. Sheetal Kothari 

4.     Mrs. Asha Kothari 
d) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives 

1. Visagar Financial Services Limited 
2. Visagar Polytex Limited 
3. Maharashtra Corporation Limited 
4. Trisha Studios Limited 
5. Visagar Developers Private Limited 
6. Njoymax OTT Entertainment Private Limited 
7. Jagrecha Finance and Trades Private Limited 
8. Sagar Portfolio Services Limited 
9. Visagar Textiles Private Limited 
10. Luxury Collective Private Limited 
11. Visagar Agro Products Private Limited 
12. Aark Enterprises 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

108 | P a g e  
 

28. Transaction with Related Parties during the Year  
 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
In accordance with Accounting Standard Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segment’ the Company has only one reportable 
business segment and have only one reportable geographic segment in India. 

 

29. Capital Risk Management:  

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to 

optimise returns to our shareholders. 

The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements 

in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage 

the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In 

order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

30. Contingent Liabilities: Nil (Previous Year – Nil) 

 

Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction Year ending 
March 31, 2025 

Year ending March 
31, 2024 

Ms.Payal Agarwal Remuneration 0 0.45 
Outstanding 0 - 

Ms.Shalu Sharma Remuneration 0 1.03 
Ms.Archana Gupta Remuneration 7.03 0.93 
Mr.Vikramjit Singh Gill Remuneration 3 2.35 
Mr. Sanjay Rajak Remuneration 0.1 0.05 
Mrs.Sheetal Kothari Remuneration 0 9.90 
Mrs.Surbhi Kothari Remuneration 0 5.50 
Mr.Sagar Kothari Rent 5.19 6.60 
Mr. Vishal Kothari Remuneration 0 5.50 
Ms.Kiran Kaur Remuneration 7.16 1.95 
Mr.Tilokchand Kothari Remuneration 1 3.30 
Mr.Tilokchand Kothari Loan Taken 0 0.56 

Loan Repaid 0 0.56 

Vsagar Textiles Private Limited Loan Taken 60 60.00 

Loan Repaid 20 0.00 

Sagar Portfolio Services Limited Loan Taken 60 105.00 

Loan Repaid 71.25 45.00 

Outstanding -11.25 60.00 

Visagar Financial Services Limited Loan Taken 1736.25 46.00 
Loan Repaid 771 127.00 

Outstanding 965.25 0.00 

Trisha Studios Limited Purchase of Services 116.20 99.88 

Payment 128.20 266.26 
Outstanding -12.00 0.00 
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial 

liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and 

other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 

Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects 

on its financial performance. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such 

as equity price risk and commodity risk.  

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 

leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade 

receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities. The Company generally doesn't have collateral. 

Trade Receivables and Security Deposits 

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating 

to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of each customer is assessed and credit limits are defined in 

accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and security deposits are regularly monitored. 

Liquidity Risk 

The company's principal source of liquidity is cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from 

operations. The company has no outstanding bank borrowings. The company believes that the working capital is 

sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. 

32. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE RATIO 

Particulars March 

31, 2025 

March 

31, 2024 

Variance Note 

A. Performance Ratios 

Net Profit Ratios 

(Profit After Tax and exceptional items from 

continuing operations /Revenue From Operations) 

(0.27) 353 (1.27) Due to Loss in the 

current period 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio 

(Revenue from operations/closing Working Capital 

excluding current maturities of long term debt) 

0.08 0.06 (0.92) Increase in 

Revenue from 

Operation 
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Return on Capital Employed 

(Profit before exceptional items, interest and tax 

from continuing operations/Closing Capital 

Employed*) 

*Closing Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth 

+ Gross Debt + Deferred Tax Liability) 

(0.13) 0.22 (1.27) Due to Loss in the 

current period 

Return on Equity Ratio 

(Profit after Tax exceptional items, interest and tax 

from continuing operations/Closing shareholder’s 

equity) 

(0.01) 0.07 (1.01) Due to Loss in the 

current period 

Return on Investment 

(Profit after Tax exceptional items, interest and tax 

from continuing operations/Closing total assets) 

(0.01) 0.10 (1.01) Due to Loss in the 

current period 

B. Leverage Ratios 

Debt-Equity Ratio 

(Total borrowings (-) cash and cash equivalents and 

current investments) / (Total equity) 

0.06 0.01 (0.94) Increase in 

Borrowings in the 

current period 

C. Liquidity Ratios 

Current Ratio 

(Current Assets/Current Liabilities excluding current 

maturities of long term debt) 

6.33 31.12 5.33 Increase in 

Current liabilities 

due to increase in 

Borrowings in the 

current period 

D. Activity Ratio 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 

(Cost of Goods Sold/Closing Inventory) 

0.12 0.04 (0.88) Increase in 

Inventory during 

the period 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 

(Revenue from Operations/Closing Current Trade 

Receivables) 

0.84 2.73 (0.16) Increase in Trade 

Receivables 

during the period.

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 10.20 7.85 9.20 Increase in Trade 
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(Cost of Goods Sold/Closing Current Trade Payable) Payable during 

the period. 

Note: Explanation for change in ratio by more than 25% 

33. Certain Balances of parties under sundry debtors, creditors, loans and advances are subject to 

confirmations/reconciliation. 

34. There was no expenditure/earning in Foreign Currency during the year. 

35. The Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck off under Section 248 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

36. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current year 

or previous year. 

37. The Company has not entered into any Scheme or Arrangements that are approved by the Competent 

Authority in terms of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 

38. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 

39. Previous Year figures have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform in the Current Year’s 

presentation. 

For Bhatter& Associates For Shalimar Productions Limited 
Chartered Accountant  
Firm Reg. No.131411W  
  
   
 Tilokchand Kothari Vikramjit singh gill 
CA Gopal Bhatter Director CFO and Director 
Partner DIN: 00413627 DIN: 08875328 
M. No. 411226   
 
 
   
 Kiran Kaur Archana Gupta 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 30.05.2025 

Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary 
MN: A72672 
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